Date:
31 July 2002

To:
Dr. Sue Hodson

Literary Manuscripts Curator

The Huntington Library

From:
Dr. David Hanson


Department of English


Southeastern Louisiana University

Dear Dr. Hodson:

I am writing to open discussion about a new stage in an editorial project, which has engaged me for many years, and which has included numerous visits to the Huntington. On behalf of my University, Southeastern Louisiana University, I have secured a formal agreement with the Ruskin Programme at Lancaster University in the UK jointly to produce a hypertext edition, The Early Ruskin Manuscripts, 1826–1842. This edition will collect the early writings of the Victorian art and social critic John Ruskin. The collaboration between my University and Lancaster presents a terrific opportunity, as the edition will be paired with one recently completed by Lancaster, Ruskin’s Modern Painters I . See the edition on the web at: 

http://www.lancs.ac.uk/users/ruskin/empi/index.html.

Since Modern Painters I was Ruskin’s first major publication, published in 1843, the two editions together will make available, for the first time, an acceptable scholarly edition of the complete writings of Ruskin from the earliest extant compositions through his first major book.

For many years now, I have been researching the early writing of Ruskin with the support of two NEH grants (Travel to Collections, and Summer Stipend); a Beinecke Fellowship at Yale University; and travel grants from the Bibliographic Society of America, the American Philosophical Society, the South Central Modern Language Association and my University. With this generous support, I have now virtually completed gathering materials for the edition. The manuscript held by the Huntington most directly pertinent to the edition is:

Euclidean exercise notebook (HM 6103)

I have discussed this notebook briefly in articles I have written about the juvenilia. I hope now that you will consent to its inclusion in a complete scholarly edition.


I am requesting both to publish a transcription of the notebook as well as to provide readers with images of the manuscript. If you will take a moment to examine the Modern Painters edition at the website address above, you will see that the Lancaster edition is based as much on image as on word—an appropriate procedure in anything to do with Ruskin. An essential difference between the Modern Painters and Early Manuscripts editions, however, is that, in the former edition, the main reading texts consist of images of the original printed books, whereas in the latter the main reading texts will be transcripts, with images of the manuscripts provided only as information about the state of Ruskin’s draft or fair copy. It is not expected in Early Ruskin Manuscripts that a reader would be able adequately to decipher an electronic image for reading purposes. (In any case, the technology for navigating through the images of printed books, exclusively developed by Lancaster for the Modern Painters edition, will not work applied to images of the more chaotic manuscripts.) In the case of the Huntington notebook, images are particularly important, since there is no other way to communicate precisely what Ruskin was doing in these exercises.

I hope that you are able to lend your approval to this project. Vincent Giroud at the Beinecke and Robert Parks at the Morgan have already assented to having the relevant manuscripts in their institutions’ collections imaged for the edition. My present priority is to gain funding to do this. I am applying for a Scholarly Editions Grant from the NEH, so I need to get an idea of the cost of imaging the exercise book, by whatever means you deem appropriate.

The deadline for the grant application is September 1. Now is the time to proceed, as the key staff members have committed their time. The agreement with Lancaster was formalized on paper two years ago, but it was only this summer that I was able to assemble all my staff at Lancaster and Southeastern. The head of the Ruskin Programme is Professor Keith Hanley, and the Electronic Editing Project is overseen there by Professor Roger Garside of Lancaster’s Department of Computing and by Professor Ray Haslam of St. Martin’s College’s Department of Art (Adjunct Professor in the Ruskin Programme). Lancaster has also involved a doctoral student in the edition. At my University, staff is committed from the Departments of English and Computer Science.


In order that I may proceed with the grant application, I would very much appreciate hearing your thoughts about the edition and, if you are willing to participate, an estimate of the cost of imaging the manuscript. Please do not hesitate to ask me any questions about the project. Thank you very much for your time and consideration.

